OXONIENSIA

A REFEREED JOURNAL DEALING WITH THE
ARCHAEOLOGY, HISTORY, AND ARCHITECTURE
OF OXFORD AND OXFORDSHIRE

VOLUME 76

2011

PUBLISHED AND SOLD BY
THE OXFORDSHIRE ARCHITECTURAL & HISTORICAL SOCIETY
ASHMOLEAN MUSEUM, OXFORD

Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society



© Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society 2011. All rights reserved.

The Committee of the Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society wishes it to be understood that it is not
responsible for any statements or opinions expressed in Oxoniensia.

The authors and publisher are grateful to all the institutions and individuals listed for permission to reproduce the
materials in which they hold copyright. Every effort has been made to trace the copyright holders; apologies are offered
for any omission, and the publisher will be pleased to add any necessary acknowledgement in a subsequent edition.

ISSN 0308-5562

Produced for the Society by
Boydell & Brewer Ltd
Printed in Great Britain by CPI Group (UK) Ltd, Croydon, CRO 4YY

Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society



Contents

Officers and Committee of the Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society v

List of Colour Plates vi

List of Abbreviations vii

List of Contributors viii

ARTICLES

Romano-British Trackways in the Upper Thames Valley 1
PauL Boorn

The ‘Lost’ Church of Bix Gibwyn 15
STEPHEN MILESON and Davip NicHOLLS

A City Parish in the English Civil War: St Aldate’s, Oxford, 1642-6 39
RosemaRry KELLY

Henley’s Major Inns in the Seventeenth and Early Eighteenth Centuries 55
BARBARA ALLISON

The Restoration of Berrick Salome Church 81
Liam TILLER

The Rhodes Building at Oriel, 1904—2011: Dynamite or Designate? 95

EpwARrD IMPEY

REPORTS

Excavations at Tubney Wood Quarry, 2001-9 105
ANDREW SIMMONDS, HUGO ANDERSON-WHYMARK, and ANDREW NORTON

Prehistoric, Romano-British, and Anglo-Saxon Activity at Whitelands Farm, Bicester 173
JoN MARTIN

Excavations South of St Andrew’s Church, Letcombe Regis: Prehistoric, Roman, 241
Anglo-Saxon, and Saxo-Norman Activity
DaAvip GILBERT

NOTES

Archaeological Work in Oxford, 2010 259
Davip RADFORD

Archaeological Work in Oxfordshire, 2010 261
HucH CoppINGTON and RiCHARD ORAM

The Portable Antiquities Scheme in Oxfordshire, 2010 264
ANNI BYARD

A Roman Lead ‘Tank’ from Wigginton, North Oxfordshire 266

PauL BoorH, EsTHER CAMERON, and BELINDA CRERAR

Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society



Possible Early Christian Enclosure and Deserted Medieval Settlement at Prescote, 273
near Cropredy
STEPHEN WAass and REBECCA DEALTRY

Flint House and Flint Cottage, Wallingford 280
Davip E. PEDGLEY, with Davip CLARK

REVIEWS

Kate Tiller and Giles Darkes (eds.), An Historical Atlas of Oxfordshire 287
MicHAEL HAVINDEN

Andrew Hutt, Paul Goodenough, and Valerine Pyne, Living in the Iron Age in and around 289
Berkshire
ALEx LaNG

Warwick Rodwell, Dorchester Abbey, Oxfordshire: The Archaeology and Architecture of a 290
Cathedral, Monastery and Parish Church
Jon CANNON

Philip Page, Kate Atherton, and Alan Hardy with numerous other contributors, Barentin’s 292
Manor: Excavations of the Moated Manor at Harding’s Field, Chalgrove, Oxfordshire, 1976-9
STEPHEN MILESON

John Fox, The King’s Smuggler: Jane Whorwood, Secret Agent to Charles I 294
FroNna YOUNGMAN
John Banbury, Robert Edwards, and Elizabeth Poskitt (eds.), Woodstock and the Royal 295

Park: Nine Hundred Years of History; Patricia D. Crutch, Close Families of Old Woodstock:
The Story of Spittle House Close 1566—-2000
Mary HoDGES

Simon Townsend and Jeremy Gibson, Banbury Past through Artists’ Eyes 296
JOHN STEANE

Alan Rosevear, Turnpike Roads to Banbury 297
Dori1aN GERHOLD

Geoffrey Tyack, Simon Bradley, and Nikolaus Pevsner, Berkshire 298
WiLLiam WHYTE

J.R.L. Allen, Late Churches and Chapels in Berkshire: A Geological Perspective from the Late ~ 299
Eighteenth Century to the First World War
Davip CLARK

Adam Sisman, Hugh Trevor-Roper: The Biography 301
PHiLip WALLER

Marilyn Yurdan, Oxfordshire Graves and Gravestones 303
CARL BOARDMAN

INDEX 305

Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society



THE OXFORDSHIRE ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORICAL SOCIETY
Officers and Committee 2011

President
G.H. LAMBRICK, M.A., ES.A., M.I.LEA.

Vice-Presidents

T.H. WILSON, M.A., M.PHIL., E.S.A. S.S. FRERE, C.B.E., M.A., E.B.A., E.S.A.
J.R.L. HIGHFIELD, M.A., D.PHIL., E.S.A. T.G. HASSALL, O.B.E., M.A., E.S.A., M.I.E.A.
B.W. CUNLIFEFE, K.B., C.B.E., M.A., PH.D., LITT.D., E.B.A., ES.A. R.T. ROWLEY, M.A., M.LITT., E.S.A., M.L.LE.A.
Miss G.M. BRIGGS, M.A. J.M. STEANE, M.A., F.S.A., M.L.E.A.

M.R. AIRS, M.A., D.PHIL., E.S.A., .LH.B.C.

Committee

Honorary Secretary
J. HIND

Honorary Treasurer
D.R. CLARK

Editor
S.A. MiLEsoN (St Edmund Hall, Oxford, OX1 4AR)

Communications Secretary
S. MORLEY

Honorary Auditor
G. Hupson

Honorary Librarian
J. MUNBY

Honorary Reviews Editor
R.B. PEBERDY (38 Randolph Street, Oxford, OX4 1XZ)

Lecture Secretary
VACANT

Membership Secretary
P. MarsH (9 Kings End, Bicester, Oxfordshire, 0X26 6DR)

Oxford City and County Archaeological Forum
G.H. LaMBRICK (CHAIRMAN) R. AiNsLIE (HON. SECRETARY)

Sub-Committee for Listed Buildings

D.R. CLARK (CHAIRMAN) E. WoorLey (HON. SECRETARY)

Webmaster and Excursion Secretary
T. Dopp

Ordinary Members
A. LAaNG J. CUMBER

A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OXFORD
UNIVERSITY ARCHAEOLOGICAL SOCIETY

Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society



Colour Plates

Plate 1. The narrow chancel arch and flanking niches of Bix Brand church in Bix Bottom (2011).
Photograph by Stephen Mileson. [Mileson and Nicholls, p. 17]

Plate 2. Modern cottages at Old Chapel in Bix Bottom, looking south-east (2007). Photograph by
Stephen Mileson. [Mileson and Nicholls, p. 19]

Plate 3. The 2010 Keeper’s Cottage excavation, looking south. Photograph by Stephen Mileson.
[Mileson and Nicholls, p. 22]

Plate 4. The White Hart Inn, Henley. Photograph by author. [Allison, p. 71]

Plate 5. Berrick Salome church tower, looking east. Photograph by author. [Tiller, p. 89]

Plate 6. The interior of Berrick church, looking down from the gallery. Photograph by author.
[Tiller, p. 94]

Plate 7. The Rhodes Building from the High Street. Photograph by Marcus Beale Architects.
[Impey, p. 95]

Plate 8. Gold foil from Tubney Bronze-Age cremation burial 5353. [Simmonds p. 110]

Plate 9. View of funerary enclosures 1677 and 1678, facing south-east. [Simmonds p. 117]

Plate 10. Vaulted stone cellar discovered during recent work at The Queen’s College, Oxford.
Photograph by Mark Vice, BGS Architects. [Radford, p. 259]

Plate 11. View of the rectangular entrance chamber at the southern end of the Queen’s cellar.
Photograph by Mark Vice, BGS Architects. [Radford, p. 259]

Plate 12. Flint House (left) and Flint Cottage (right), 52 and 53 High Street, Wallingford.
Photograph by author. [Pedgley, p. 280]

Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
Published in Oxoniensia 2011, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society





